Earth Negotiations Bulletin

A Reportl ng SerV| ce for EnV| ronment and Devel opment Negotlatl ons
Onlineat http://www.iisd.ca/ozone/mop13/

Vol. 19 No. 15

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)

Thursday, 18 October 2001

MOP-13HIGHLIGHTS
WEDNESDAY, 17 OCTOBER 2001

Onthe second and final day of the preparatory segment of
MOP-13, delegates met in Plenary sessionsto finalize draft deci-
sionson, inter alia: production of CFCsfor metered-doseinhalers
(MDlIs); monitoring of international trade and prevention of illegal
tradein ODS; process agents; and complianceissues. Inthe after-
noon, ministersfrom Article 5 Parties convened informally to
discussimplementation challenges.

PLENARY

PRODUCTION OF CFCsFOR MDIs: Amending adraft
decision it had presented at OEWG-21 (UNEP/OzL.Pro/wg.1/21/
CRP7), CUBA proposed requesting the Multilateral Fund Execu-
tive Committeeto develop guidelinesfor preparing strategies and
investment projectsthat would enable Article 5 countriesto move
to CFC-freeMDIs. CANADA and the US supported the proposal.
The US noted the lack of experience with CFC-free MDIs, evenin
developed countries. Delegates then considered a US-proposed
draft decision on MDIs (UNEP/OzL .Pro/wg.1/21/CRP.8), calling
upon the TEAPto further study CFC campaign production for
MDIs. AUSTRALIA, supported by the EC, proposed specifying
that the TEAP should present itsfindingsto OEWG-22 and
continueto monitor and report on the likely need for campaign
production. The EC noted that production of CFCsfor MDIsinthe
Netherlands would cease by 2005. Parties agreed to forward both
draft decisionsto the high-level segment.

ISSUESRELATING TO MONITORING OF INTERNA-
TIONAL TRADE AND PREVENTION OF ILLEGAL
TRADE IN ODS: Delegates considered adraft decision (UNEP/
OzL .Pro/13/9) requesting the Secretariat to prepare areport for
OEWG-22 on thistopic. POLAND supported the further develop-
ment of customs codes on ODS. INDIA proposed to add reference
to substances mixed with ODS. The US, supported by CANADA
and the EC, proposed streamlining the draft decision to avoid
repeating text agreed to at MOP-11. The US| ater introduced a
streamlined draft decision (UNEP/OzL .Pro.13/CRP.15) whichwas
forwarded to the high-level segment.

CANADA introduced an information paper including recom-
mendations by the World Customs Organization’'s Customs Co-
operation Council and listing Canada’s most common ODS harmo-
nized codes. He remarked that Canadais devel oping amanual for
law enforcement officialsonillegal ODStrade and an electronic
training package for customs officers.

PROCESSAGENTS: Heinrich Kraus (Germany), Multilat-
eral Fund Executive Committee Chair, stated that the Committee
has adopted framework guidelinesfor considering process-agent
projects. He said that, since 1999, el even process-agent projects
have been approved, mostly small-scale and all involving process
change. Nick Campbell, TEAP, said process-agent data provided
by Article 5 countriesis often not current, complete or consistent,
and suggested that Parti es agree on acommon reporting format. He

said several uses of ODS as process agents additional to those
listed in Decision X/14 have been proposed, but have not yet been
fully reviewed by the process agent task force.

INDIA, supported by CHINA and IRAN, said the TEAP report
lacks sufficient detail to enable ameaningful evaluation. EGY PT
called for clarification of the status of ODS used to remove impuri-
tiesin aluminum production. CHINA said thelist of ODSused as
process agents should be expanded, and advocated specifying an
allowed level of ODS emissionsfor al process agents.

The USreported that it had reached agreement with Indiato
support the EC-proposed draft decision (UNEP/OzL .Pro.13/
CRP9), which requeststhe TEAP to present afull evaluation on
ODS used as process agentsto OEWG-22, with the understanding
that sufficient information would be availablein 2002 to amend the
list of eligible process-agent uses. Delegates agreed to forward the
draft decision to the high-level segment.

COMPLIANCE ISSUES: MariaNolan (UK), President of
the Implementation Committee, introduced draft decisions
submitted by the | mplementation Committee on complianceissues
(UNEP/OzL .Pro.13/CRP.12). Thefirst draft decision addressed
Article 5 Parties (Bangladesh, Chad, Comoros, Dominican
Republic, Honduras, Kenya, Mongolia, Niger, Nigeria, Oman,
Papua New Guinea, Paraguay, Samoaand Solomon Islands) who
had not submitted datafor theinitial CFC consumption freeze
control period (1 July 1999 to 30 June 2000) and cautioned that
measureswould be applied if they failed to comply inthefuture.
Other draft decisions addressed: the Russian Federation's efforts
toward compliance, including ending CFC productionin
December 2000 and stopping ODS importation in March 2000;
Armenia's non-compliance with datareporting for baseline deter-
mination; Kazakhstan and Tajikistan's consumption of Annex A
and B substances without essential use exemptions; Argentina's
non-compliance with the production freeze; and Belize, Came-
roon, Ethiopiaand Peru's non-compliancein theinitial control
period with the CFC consumption freeze.

The US expressed concern over non-complianceintheinitial
freeze period given the assistance provided through the Multil at-
eral Fund. He emphasized that countriesin non-compliance must
adopt adequate monitoring schemesto ensure compliance.

OMAN noted that uncertainty over what consumption quanti-
tieswere allowed had impeded its reporting and, noting effortsto
reduce ODS consumption and import, requested that it be removed
from the decision. SAMOA said it would provide the outstanding
information and return to compliance as soon as possible. BANG-
LADESH noted effortsto phase out CFC consumption and
projected a50% reduction by 2002. BELIZE said delaysin
receiving financial assistance had hampered itscompliance efforts,
and highlighted itsrefrigeration management plan, training
sessionsfor refrigerator techniciansand alicensing systemto be
launched in November. Hefurther noted that Belize's consumption
baseline was underestimated.

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by Joanna Depledge <joanna@iisd.org>, Andrei Henry <andrei @iisd.org>, Laura
lvers <laurai @iisd.org> and Kira Schmidt <kira@iisd.org>. The Operations Manager is Marcela Rojo <marcel a@iisd.org> and the On-Line Assistant is Diego Noguera
<diego@iisd.org>. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Director of 11SD Reporting Services is Langston James "Kimo" Goree VI
<kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the United States
(through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape (SAEFL), the United Kingdom (through the Department for International Development -
DFID and the Foreign & Commonwealth Office), the European Commission (DG-ENV), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, and the Government of Germany (through
the German Federal Ministry of Environment - BMU, and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation - BMZ). General Support for the Bulletin during
2001 is provided by the Ministries of Foreign Affairsand Environment of Finland, the Government of Australia, the Ministry of Environment and the Ministry of Foreign
Affairs of Sweden, the Ministry of Foreign Affairsand Trade of New Zealand, the Ministries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Norway, Swan International, and the
Japan Environment Agency (through the Institute for Global Environmental Strategies—IGES.) The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org>and at tel: +1-
212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. 11SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y 4,
Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin arethose of the authorsand do not necessarily reflect the viewsof 11SD and other funders. Excerptsfrom
the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this materia in
commercial publications, contact the Director of 11SD Reporting Services. Electronic versions of the Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the
Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca. The satellite image was taken above Nairobi ©2001 The Living Earth, Inc. http:/livingearth.com. For information on the
Earth Negotiations Bulletin or to arrange coverage of ameeting, conference or workshop, send e-mail to the Director of [1SD Reporting Services at <kimo@iisd.org>.




Thursday, 18 October 2001

Vol. 19 No. 15 Page 2

NIGERIA noted delaysin compliance due to problems encoun-
tered in preparing its country programme. He highlighted Nigeria's
import ban on second-hand equipment containing ODS and new
licensing scheme. PERU and MEXICO stressed the importance of
international aid for compliance. KENYA said it hasastrategy for
compliancein place and noted complicationsin sustaining the CFC
freezelevel initsfoam-blowing industry asthe replacement used
was found to cause cancer. ARGENTINA said it hopestobein
compliance soon and highlighted its elaboration of an export and
import licensing system.

ARMENIA said it had submitted the necessary dataand
expressed concern that thiswas not reflected. POLAND asked
which ODS the Russian Federation had stopped importing and the
RUSSIAN FEDERATION clarified that they werethosein
Annexes A and B. PAKISTAN remarked that the low cost of CFCs
on theinternational market and relatively high cost of CFC substi-
tutesimpeded compliance, and called to remedy this situation.

BRAZIL saidto“caution” Parties out of compliance wastoo
strong, and called for weaker language. He al so proposed that
measures toward compliance specified in the draft decisionsbe
deleted. The US opposed, noting that “caution” and specific
measures had been included in previous compliance-rel ated deci-
sions. Implementation Committee President Nolan agreed with the
US and supported adding the Russian Federation's clarification.
The draft decisions were forwarded to the high-level segment.

REPORTING OF DATA: Delegates accepted the draft deci-
sion on dataand information provided by Partiesin accordance
with Article 7 in UNEP/OzL .Pro.13/9, with the number of
reporting Partiesto be updated by the Secretariat.

RATIFICATION: Severa delegatesreported that they had
recently submitted their instruments of ratification for various
Amendments: the UK, for the Montreal and Beijing Amendments;
the MALDIVES, for the Copenhagen and Montreal Amendments;
NIGERIA, for the London, Copenhagen and Montreal Amend-
ments; and TOGO for the Beijing Amendment. Del egates agreed to
forward the draft decision on thisitem (UNEP/OzL .Pro.13/CRP.9)
to the high-level segment.

EVALUATION STUDY ON THE FINANCIAL MECHA-
NISM: Delegates accepted the EC-proposed draft decision calling
for this study (UNEP/OzL .Pro.13/CRP5), with JAPAN’s addition
of text requesting that the existing eval uation mechanismsin place
within the UN system provide Parties with relevant findings on the
management and functioning of the Mechanism. Thedraft decision
was forwarded to the high-level segment.

REVIEW OF IMPLEMENTATION OF THE FIXED-
EXCHANGE-RATE MECHANI SM: Delegates considered an
EC-proposed draft decision calling for areview of the fixed-
exchange-rate mechanism (UNEP/OzL .Pro.13/CRP.13). INDIA
called for the decision to state that the lossincurred due to the
mechanism must be compensated for. The EC and JAPAN stated
that thiswould be premature, asthe mechanism remainsin atria
period. BRAZIL, with NIGERIA, suggested adding that the review
should explore waysto compensate for any shortfall. No consensus
was reached and the EC withdrew its proposal .

N-PROPYL BROMIDE: Regarding the EC-proposed draft
decision on n-propy! bromide (nPB) (UNEP/OzL .Pro.13/CRP.10),
the US, supported by JAPAN, proposed deleting text on limiting
the marketing and promotion of nPB, and proposed urging industry
and usersto “consider” limiting the use of NPB when more
economically feasible and environmentally friendly alternatives
are not available, rather than to “take precautionary action by”
limiting its use. The decision was forwarded to the high-level

ment.

OTHER MATTERS: A USdraft decision directing UNEPto
urgently hire an Executive Secretary for the Ozone Secretariat
(UNEP/OzL .Pro.13/CRP.11) was supported and forwarded to the
high-level segment.

PREPARATIONSFOR THE WORLD SUMMIT ON
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT (WSSD): Regarding the
EC-proposed draft decision on preparing for WSSD (UNEP/

OzL .Pro.13/CRP.14), delegates debated a paragraph on supporting
collaboration on synergies between multilateral environmental
agreements (MEAS). AUSTRALIA requested, and JAPAN

opposed, deleting “ synergies.” Delegates agreed to retain “ syner-
gies’ with US-proposed text clarifying support for “ appropriate
collaboration and synergiesthat may exist between MEAsas
agreed by the Partiesto those agreements.”

Regarding text welcoming UNEP'swork on waysto strengthen
international environmental governance (IEG), IRAN preferred
waysto “explore different aspectsof” IEG. FINLAND said
“strengthen” was UN General Assembly agreed language. Dele-
gates supported an EC suggestion to welcome UNEP'swork “inthe
framework of” 1EG, and the draft decision was forwarded to the
high-level segment.

TORFOR THE STUDY OF THE 2003-2005 REPL ENI SH-
MENT OF THE MULTILATERAL FUND: BRAZIL reported
that the closed contact group had reached agreement on adraft
decision (UNEP/OzL .Pro.13/CRP.19). He explained that the group
had reviewed an earlier G-77/Chinaproposal and agreed that most
of itsconcernswere covered by the existing guidelines and that any
remaining concerns could be dealt with in future sensitivity anal-
yses, as appropriate. Delegates agreed to forward the draft decision
tothe high-level segment, withthe US' addition that the TEAP
should take into account all control measures and relevant deci-
sionsof the Multilateral Fund Executive Committee when
preparing its study.

ARTICLE 5 PARTY MINISTERS MEETING

A high-level informal discussion for ministersfrom Article 5
countries was convened to exchange views on implementation of
theMontreal Protocol. Shafgat Kakakhel, UNEP Deputy Executive
Director, encouraged participantsto identify whether impediments
to compliance arefinancial, technical, political or institutional.
Heinrich Kraus, Chair, Multilateral Fund Executive Committee,
noted that the beginning of the compliance period for developing
countries presents new challenges. Omar El-Arini, Chief Officer,
Multilateral Fund, highlighted the need to remove barriersto tech-
nology transfer and combat illegal tradein ODS. He forecast that
the price of CFCswill remain low for only two or three years and
then substitutes will become more competitive. K. Madhava
Sarma, Special Advisor to the UNEP Executive Director, described
the availability of financing through the Multilateral Fund prior to
the entry into force of obligations as aninnovative feature of the
Protocol. MariaNolan, President, Implementation Committee,
highlighted theimportance of accurate and timely datareporting.

The ensuing discussion focused on, inter alia: competition
between ministries and overlapping fields of responsibility; the
need to prioritize the ozoneissue; the impact of the low price of
CFCsontheir consumption and development of substitutes; the
problem of illegal tradein ODS and dumping of second-hand ODS-
containing equi pment; the importance of technology transfer and
information exchange; and the need to integrate 0zone policiesinto
national development strategies.

In closing, Sarmaunderscored that devel oping countrieshavea
duty to ensure the continued success of the Montreal Protocol. He
noted the Secretariat'sintention to convene further high-level meet-
ingsto exchange views on Protocol implementation.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Delegates were discussing thelively Plenary debate on compli-
ance, which appliesto Article 5 Partiesfor thefirst time. Several
delegates characterized the strong reactions by some Article 5
Partiesto seeing their nameslisted as out of compliance asa posi-
tive sign, demonstrating the effectiveness of “ name-and-shame.”

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY

PREPARATORY SEGMENT: The preparatory segment will
resume at 8:30 am to conclude deliberationson, inter alia, the
financial statement and budget for the Trust Fund, proceduresto
assessthe ODP of new ODS, and other matters.

HIGH-LEVEL SEGMENT: Thehigh-level segment will
commence at 10:00 am with statements by Hon. Ratnasiri Wickre-
manayeke, Prime Minister of Sri Lanka; Shafqgat Kakakhel, UNEP
Deputy Executive Director; Milton Catelin, MOP-12 President;
and others.



